# Byblos Bank Armenia CJSC

# **Financial Statements**

for the year ended 31 December 2014 together with Independent auditors' report

# Contents

Independent	auditors'	renort
IIIucbelluelli	additions	I CDOI L

Stat	ement of comprehensive incomeement of financial position	. 2
	ement of cash flows	
Stat	ement of changes in equity	. 4
Not	es to the financial statements	
1.	Background	. 5
2.	Basis of preparation	. 5
3.	Significant accounting policies	. 6
4.	Net interest income	. 19
5.	Fee and commission income	. 19
6.	Fee and commission expense	. 19
7.	Net foreign exchange income	. 19
8.	Other operating expense, net	. 20
9.	Impairment losses	. 20
10.	Other general administrative expenses	. 20
11.	Income tax (expense)/ benefit	. 21
12.	Cash and cash equivalents	. 22
13.	Available-for-sale financial assets	. 23
14.	Amounts due from banks	. 24
15.	Loans to customers	. 25
16.	Property, equipment and intangible assets	. 31
17.	Other assets	. 31
18.	Deposits and balances from banks	. 32
19.	Amounts payable under repurchase agreements	. 32
	Current accounts and deposits from customers	
21.	Other borrowed funds	. 33
22.	Other liabilities	. 34
	Share capital and reserves	
24.	Risk management	. 34
25.	Capital management	. 44
26.	Credit related commitments	. 45
27.	Contingencies	. 46
28.	Related party transactions	. 46
29.	Financial assets and liabilities: fair values and accounting classifications	. 48
	Subsequent events	



Ernst & Young CJSC 1 Northern Ave., office 27 Yerevan, 0001, Armenia Tel: +374 (10) 500 790

+374 (10) 500 705 Fax: +374 (10) 500 706

www.ey.com/am

«Էրնսթ ընդ Յանգ» ՓԲԸ ՀՀ, ք. Երևան 0001 Հյուսիսային պող. 1, գրասենյակ 27

Δtn. +374 (10) 500 790 +374 (10) 500 705 \$wgu. +374 (10) 500 706

## Independent auditors' report

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Byblos Bank Armenia closed joint-stock company

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Byblos Bank Armenia closed joint-stock company, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

#### Management's responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

#### Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The audit procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

## Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Byblos Bank Armenia closed joint-stock company as at December 31, 2014, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.



Ernst & Young CJSC 1 Northern Ave., office 27 Yerevan, 0001, Armenia

Tel: +374 (10) 500 790 +374 (10) 500 705 Fax: +374 (10) 500 706

www.ey.com/am

«Էրնսթ ընդ Յանգ» ՓԲԸ ՀՀ, ք. Երևան 0001

Հյուսիսային պող. 1, գրասենյակ 27 Հեռ. +374 (10) 500 790

+374 (10) 500 790

\$шри. +374 (10) 500 706

## Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 2 (b) to the financial statements, which describes that Byblos Bank Armenia CJSC is not in compliance with a prudential ratio set by the Central Bank of Armenia. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Lughtre

Ernst and Young CJSC

Partner (Audit department)

On behalf of General Director H. Sarkisyan, (by power of attorney dated 31 July 2013)

13 March 2015

Sergei Taskaev

Eric Hayrapetyan

# Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2014

		2014	2013
	Notes	AMD'000	AMD'000
Interest income	4	3,245,797	3,736,869
Interest expense	4	(2,317,641)	(2,345,494)
Net interest income		928,156	1,391,375
Fee and commission income	5	91,716	91,773
Fee and commission expense	6	(48,407)	(47,707)
Net fee and commission income	. 5	43,309	44,066
Net foreign exchange income	7	485,168	52,120
Net gain on available-for-sale financial assets		48,339	743
Other operating expenses, net	8	(71,568)	(24,632)
Operating income		1,433,404	1,463,672
Impairment losses	9	(1,305,819)	(725,150)
Personnel expenses		(699,910)	(618,389)
Other general administrative expenses	10	(518,795)	(505,545)
Loss before income tax		(1,091,120)	(385,412)
Income tax (expense) / benefit	11	(15,367)	36,184
Loss for the year		(1,106,487)	(349,228)
Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year, net of income tax Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:			
Revaluation reserve for available-for-sale financial assets: Unrealised (losses) / gains on available-for-sale financial		(100, 200)	242.042
assets		(108,380)	242,043
Realised (losses) on available-for-sale financial assets reclassified to the statement of profit or loss		(48,339)	(743)
Income tax effect	11	31,344	(48,260)
Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year, net of income tax		(125,375)	193,040
Total comprehensive loss for the year		(1,231,862)	(156,188)

The financial statements as set out on pages 3 to 49 were approved by management on 13 March 2015 and were signed on its behalf by:

Chief Executive Officer

Head of Finance and Administration



Ararat Ghukasyan

Hayk Stepanyan

The statement of comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction with the notes to, and forming part of, the financial statements.

## Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2014

		2014	2013
	Notes	AMD'000	AMD′000
Assets			
Cash and cash equivalents	12	4,244,173	8,327,826
Available-for-sale financial assets	13		
- Held by the Bank		62,887	2,665,910
- Pledged under sale and repurchase agreements		3,118,896	773,337
Amounts due from banks	14	15,934,007	5,110,012
Loans to customers	15	28,434,633	24,105,161
Property, equipment and intangible assets	16	1,031,801	1,072,720
Other assets	17	460,760	560,565
Total assets		53,287,157	42,615,531
Liabilities			
Deposits and balances from banks	18	5,139,212	2,439,877
Amounts payable under repurchase agreements	19	3,057,139	750,641
Current accounts and deposits from customers	20	33,837,588	24,388,803
Other borrowed funds	21	3,348,533	5,841,164
Deferred tax liabilities	11	10,548	26,525
Other liabilities	22	146,824	189,346
Total liabilities		45,539,844	33,636,356
Equity			
Share capital	23	8,125,100	8,125,100
Share premium		257,149	257,149
Revaluation reserve for available-for-sale financial assets		115,892	241,267
(Accumulated losses) / Retained earnings		(750,828)	355,659
Total equity		7,747,313	8,979,175
Total liabilities and equity		53,287,157	42,615,531

# Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2014

	Natas	2014	2013
Cash flaves from apprating activities	Notes	AMD'000	AMD'000
Cash flows from operating activities Interest receipts		3,222,967	3,787,257
Interest receipts Interest payments		(2,080,936)	(2,532,539)
Fee and commission receipts		93,264	92,636
Fee and commission payments		(48,425)	92,030 (47,707)
Net receipts from available-for-sale financial assets		47,782	(47,707) 743
Net (payments)/receipts from foreign exchange		(65,585)	57,966
Tax payments (other than income tax)		(6,074)	(9,964)
Salaries and other payments to employees		(683,698)	(615,693)
Other general administrative expenses payments		(424,865)	(500,992)
Other operating expenses		(20,663)	(6,800)
Other operating expenses		(20,003)	(0,000)
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets			
Available-for-sale financial assets		152,497	(343,119)
Amounts due from banks		(9,590,991)	7,245,642
Loans to customers		(2,167,156)	(1,413,658)
Other assets		137,676	(156,862)
Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities			
Deposits and balances from banks		2,174,126	(5,628,129)
Amounts payable under repurchase agreements		2,303,802	188,843
Current accounts and deposits from customers		4,966,508	(689,693)
Payments of other borrowed funds		(2,911,065)	(76,873)
Other liabilities		(129,125)	(14,601)
Net cash used in operating activities before income taxes paid		(5,029,961)	(663,543)
Income tax paid		(57,832)	(37,646)
Cash flows used in operations		(5,087,793)	(701,189)
Cash flows used in investing activities			
Net purchases of property and equipment and intangible assets		(101,245)	(45,704)
Cash flows used in investing activities		(101,245)	(45,704)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents		(5,189,038)	(746,893)
Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents		1,105,403	103,777
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		8,327,792	8,970,908
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year	12	4,244,157	8,327,792
cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year	1 4		3,52.,.,2

# Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2014

<u>AMD'000</u>	Share capital	Share premium	Revaluation reserve for available-for- sale financial assets	Retained earnings / (Accumulated losses)	
Balance as at 1 January 2013	8,125,100	257,149	48,227	704,887	9,135,363
Total comprehensive loss Loss for the year Other comprehensive income Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:	-	-	-	(349,228)	(349,228)
Net change in fair value of available- for-sale financial assets, net of deferred tax	-	-	193,634	_	193,634
Net change in fair value of available- for-sale financial assets transferred					
to profit or loss, net of deferred tax	_	_	(594)	_	(594)
Total other comprehensive income	_	_	193,040	_	193,040
Total comprehensive loss for the year		_	193,040	(349,228)	(156,188)
Balance as at 31 December 2013	8,125,100	257,149	241,267	355,659	8,979,175
Balance as at 1 January 2014 Total comprehensive loss	8,125,100	257,149	241,267	355,659	8,979,175
Loss for the year Other comprehensive loss Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:	-	-	-	(1,106,487)	(1,106,487)
Net change in fair value of available- for-sale financial assets, net of deferred tax Net change in fair value of available-	-	-	(86,704)	-	(86,704)
for-sale financial assets transferred to profit or loss, net of deferred tax	_	_	(38,671)	_	(38,671)
Total other comprehensive loss			(125,375)		(125,375)
Total comprehensive loss for the year		_	(125,375)	(1,106,487)	(1,231,862)
Balance as at 31 December 2014	8,125,100	257,149	115,892	(750,828)	7,747,313

## 1. Background

## (a) Organisation and operations

Byblos Bank Armenia CJSC (the Bank) was established in 2007 under the laws of the Republic of Armenia.

The principal activities of "Byblos Bank Armenia" CJSC (the Bank) are deposit taking and customer account maintenance, lending, cash and settlement transactions and operations with securities and foreign exchange. The activities of the Bank are regulated by the Central Bank of Armenia (CBA). The Bank has a general banking license, and is a member of the state deposit insurance system in the Republic of Armenia.

The Bank's registered head office is 18/3 Amiryan Street, Yerevan, Republic of Armenia. The Bank has four branches.

The majority of the assets and liabilities are located in the Republic of Armenia.

#### (i) Shareholders

In August 2007 Byblos Bank SAL purchased 100% of the shares of "ITB International Trade Bank" CJSC and the Bank was renamed "Byblos Bank Armenia" CJSC.

During the year ended 31 December 2008 the European Bank for Reconstruction and Development and the OPEC Fund for International Development acquired 25% and 10% of the ordinary shares of "Byblos Bank Armenia" CJSC, respectively. The current shareholder structure is as follows:

Byblos Bank SAL – 65% European Bank for Reconstruction and Development – 25% OPEC Fund for International Development – 10%

The Bank is ultimately controlled by a single individual Francois Bassil.

#### (b) Armenian business environment

Armenia continues economic reforms and development of its legal, tax and regulatory frameworks as required by a market economy. The future stability of the Armenian economy is largely dependent upon these reforms and developments and the effectiveness of economic, financial and monetary measures undertaken by the government.

In 2014, the Armenian economy was negatively impacted by significant devaluation of the Armenian Dram. This resulted in a higher cost of capital, increased inflation and uncertainty regarding further economic growth, which could negatively affect the Bank's future financial position, results of operations and business prospects.

Management believes it is taking appropriate measures to support the sustainability of the Bank's business in the current circumstances.

## 2. Basis of preparation

#### (a) Statement of compliance

The accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

#### (b) Non-compliance with prudential ratio set by the Central Bank of Armenia

As of December 31, 2014, the Bank breached the prudential ratio of Central Bank of Armenia on maximum exposure to one borrower. The ratio was reported at 26.8% of regulatory capital compared to the maximum allowed of 20%. The Central Bank of Armenia has notified the Bank on the breach, respective sanctions to be followed. As of the date of issue of these financial statements the breach was not eliminated.

Management expects the Bank to increase the regulatory capital and to eliminate the breach of the ratio by attracting a subordinated loan amounting to USD 5,000,000 (equivalent of AMD 2,374,850 thousand as of December 31, 2014) from Byblos Bank SAL and recovering AMD 630,000 thousand through foreclosure and further sale of collaterals against impaired loans, written-off for regulatory capital calculation purposes, by the end of March 2015. The foreclosure of abovementioned collaterals subsequent to the reporting dateis disclosed in Note 30.

## 2. Basis of preparation (continued)

## (b) Non-compliance with prudential ratio set by the Central Bank of Armenia (continued)

As of December 31, 2014, the regulatory capital of the Bank amounted to AMD 7,062,528 thousand (2013: AMD 8,728,020 thousand) compared to the minimum required AMD 5,000,000 thousand (2013: AMD 5,000,000 thousand) and the regulatory capital adequacy ratio was 18.1% (2013: 22.9%) against the required minimum of 12% (2013: 12%).

## (c) Basis of measurement

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that available-for-sale financial assets are stated at fair value.

## (d) Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Bank is the Armenian Dram (AMD) as, being the national currency of the Republic of Armenia, it reflects the economic substance of the majority of underlying events and circumstances relevant to them.

The AMD is also the presentation currency for the purposes of these financial statements. The Armenian Dram is not a convertible currency outside the Republic of Armenia.

Financial information presented in AMD is rounded to the nearest thousand.

## (e) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies is described in the following notes:

- loan impairment estimates note 15
- estimates of market values of collaterals for the impaired loans note 15(c).

#### 3. Significant accounting policies

#### (a) Changes in accounting policies and presentation

Changes in accounting policies

The Bank has adopted the following amended IFRS and IFRIC which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014:

IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Amendments to IAS 32

These amendments clarify the meaning of "currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off" and the criteria for non-simultaneous settlement mechanisms of clearing houses to qualify for offsetting. These amendments had no impact on the Bank's financial position.

IFRIC Interpretation 21 Levies (IFRIC 21)

IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability should be anticipated before the specified minimum threshold is reached. This IFRIC had no impact on the Bank's financial statements as it has applied the recognition principles under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets consistent with the requirements of IFRIC 21 in prior years.

## (a) Changes in accounting policies and presentation (continued)

IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting - Amendments to IAS 39

These amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria. This amendment is not relevant to the Bank, since the Bank has not novated its derivatives during the current period.

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets - Amendments to IAS 36

These amendments remove the unintended consequences of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement on the disclosures required under IAS 36 Impairment of Assets. In addition, these amendments require disclosure of the recoverable amounts for the assets or cash-generating units (CGUs) for which an impairment loss has been recognised or reversed during the period. These amendments had no impact on the Bank's financial position or performance.

The accounting policies set out below are applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

## (b) Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Bank at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value is determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in profit or loss, except for differences arising on the retranslation of available-for-sale equity instruments unless the difference is due to impairment in which case foreign currency differences that have been recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss; or qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedge is effective, which are recognized in other comprehensive income.

## (c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, obligatory reserves for attracted funds in local currency with the CBA, unrestricted balances (nostro accounts) held with the CBA and other banks. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position.

## (d) Financial instruments

#### (i) Classification

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets or liabilities that are:

- acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term
- part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking
- derivative financial instruments (except for derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging instrument) or,
- upon initial recognition, designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

- (d) Financial instruments (continued)
- (i) Classification (continued)

The Bank may designate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss where either:

- the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis
- the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise or,
- the asset or liability contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required under the contract.

All trading derivatives in a net receivable position (positive fair value) as well as options purchased are reported as assets. All trading derivatives in a net payable position (negative fair value) as well as options written are reported as liabilities.

Management determines the appropriate classification of financial instruments in this category at the time of the initial recognition. Derivative financial instruments and financial instruments designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition are not reclassified out of at fair value through profit or loss category. Financial assets that would have met the definition of loans and receivables may be reclassified out of the fair value through profit or loss or available-for-sale category if the Bank has an intention and ability to hold them for the foreseeable future or until maturity. Other financial instruments may be reclassified out of at fair value through profit or loss category only in rare circumstances. Rare circumstances arise from a single event that is unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near term.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, other than those that the Bank:

- intends to sell immediately or in the near term
- upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss
- upon initial recognition designates as available- for-sale, or
- may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of credit deterioration.

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Bank has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, other than those that:

- the Bank upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss
- · the Bank designates as available-for-sale, or
- meet the definition of loans and receivables.

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss.

#### (ii) Recognition

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases of financial assets are accounted for at the trade date.

#### (iii) Measurement

A financial asset or liability is initially measured at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset or liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or liability.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets, including derivatives that are assets, are measured at their fair values, without any deduction for transaction costs that may be incurred on sale or other disposal, except for:

## (d) Financial instruments (continued)

#### (iii) Measurement (continued)

- loans and receivables which are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method
- held-to-maturity investments that are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method
- investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured which are measured at cost.

All financial liabilities, other than those designated at fair value through profit or loss and financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset carried at fair value does not qualify for derecognition, are measured at amortized cost.

#### (iv) Amortized cost

The amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognized and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment. Premiums and discounts, including initial transaction costs, are included in the carrying amount of the related instrument and amortized based on the effective interest rate of the instrument.

#### (v) Fair value measurement principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal, or in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Bank has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

When there is no quoted price in an active market, the Bank uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates all the factors that market participants would take into account in these circumstances.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction price, i.e., the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Bank determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is supported wholly by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, the Bank measures assets and long positions at the bid price and liabilities and short positions at the ask price.

The Bank recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

#### (vi) Gains and losses on subsequent measurement

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or liability is recognized as follows:

- a gain or loss on a financial instrument classified as at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in profit or loss
- a gain or loss on an available-for-sale financial asset is recognized as other comprehensive income in equity (except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses on debt financial instruments available-for-sale) until the asset is derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity is recognized in profit or loss. Interest in relation to an available-for-sale financial asset is recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

For financial assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost, a gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss when the financial asset or liability is derecognized or impaired, and through the amortization process.

## (d) Financial instruments (continued)

## (vii) Derecognition

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset. Any interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the Bank is recognized as a separate asset or liability in the statement of financial position. The Bank derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.

The Bank enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its statement of financial position, but retains either all risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognized.

In transactions where the Bank neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset, it derecognizes the asset if control over the asset is lost.

In transfers where control over the asset is retained, the Bank continues to recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred assets.

The Bank writes off assets deemed to be uncollectible.

#### (viii) Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Securities sold under sale and repurchase (repo) agreements are accounted for as secured financing transactions, with the securities retained in the statement of financial position and the counterparty liability included in amounts payable under repo transactions within deposits and balances from banks or current accounts and deposits from customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and repurchase prices represents interest expense and is recognized in profit or loss over the term of the repo agreement using the effective interest method.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repo) are recorded as amounts receivable under reverse repo transactions within loans to banks or loans to customers, as appropriate. The difference between the purchase and resale prices represents interest income and is recognized in profit or loss over the term of the repo agreement using the effective interest method.

If assets purchased under an agreement to resell are sold to third parties, the obligation to return securities is recorded as a trading liability and measured at fair value.

#### (ix) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments include swaps, forwards, futures and options in interest rates, foreign exchanges, precious metals and stock markets, and any combinations of these instruments.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. All derivatives are carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Although the Bank trades in derivative instruments for risk hedging purposes, these instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting.

#### (x) Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

## (e) Property and equipment

#### (i) Owned assets

Items of property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Where an item of property and equipment comprises major components having different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property and equipment.

## (ii) Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the individual assets. Depreciation commences on the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed assets, from the time an asset is completed and ready for use. Land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

buildings50 yearscomputers and computer equipment1-5 yearsfixtures and fittings5-10 yearsmotor vehicles5 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and lease term.

#### (f) Intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.

Amortization is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets. The estimated useful lives range from 1-10 years.

## (g) Repossessed assets

The Bank recognizes repossessed assets in the statement of financial position when it has the full and final settlement rights to the collateral.

Repossessed assets are measured at the lower of the carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell. At initial recognition repossessed assets are measured based on the carrying value of the defaulted loan, including expenditure incurred in the process of collateral foreclosure. Fair value less costs to sell is the estimated selling price of the collateral in the ordinary course of business, less the related selling costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, repossessed assets are reviewed for held for sale classification criteria and are reclassified accordingly when the criteria are met.

Repossessed assets are included in other assets.

Gains and losses on disposal of repossessed assets are recognized net in "other operating income" in profit or loss.

#### (h) Impairment

The Bank assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists, the Bank determines the amount of any impairment loss.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset (a loss event) and that event (or events) has had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency by a borrower, breach of loan covenants or conditions, restructuring of financial asset or group of financial assets on terms that the Bank would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, deterioration in the value of collateral, or other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the group.

Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. The accounting treatment of such restructuring is as follows:

- If the currency of the loan has been changed the old loan is derecognized and the new loan is recognized.
- If the loan restructuring is not caused by the financial difficulties of the borrower the Bank uses the same approach as for the loan portfolio.
- If the loan restructuring is due to the financial difficulties of the borrower and the loan is impaired after restructuring, the Bank recognizes the difference between the present value of the new cash flows discounted using the original effective interest rate and the carrying amount before restructuring in the impairment allowance for the period. In case loan is not impaired after restructuring the Bank recalculates the effective interest rate.

Once the terms have been renegotiated, the loan is no longer considered past due. Management continuously reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the loan's original or current effective interest rate.

#### (i) Financial assets carried at amortized cost

Financial assets carried at amortized cost consist principally of loans and other receivables (loans and receivables). The Bank reviews its loans and receivables to assess impairment on a regular basis.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for loans and receivables that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for loans and receivables that are not individually significant. If the Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed loan or receivable, whether significant or not, it includes the loan or receivable in a group of loans and receivables with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Loans and receivables that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a loan or receivable has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the loan or receivable and the present value of estimated future cash flows including amounts recoverable from guarantees and collateral discounted at the loan or receivable's original effective interest rate. Contractual cash flows and historical loss experience adjusted on the basis of relevant observable data that reflect current economic conditions provide the basis for estimating expected cash flows.

In some cases the observable data required to estimate the amount of impairment loss on a loan or receivable may be limited or no longer fully relevant to current circumstances. This may be the case when a borrower is in financial difficulties and there is little available historical data relating to similar borrowers. In such cases, the Bank uses its experience and judgment to estimate the amount of any impairment loss.

#### (h) Impairment (continued)

All impairment losses in respect of loans and receivables are recognized in profit or loss and are only reversed if a subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related allowance for loan impairment. The Bank writes off a loan balance (and any related allowances for loan losses) when management determines that the loans are uncollectible and when all necessary steps to collect the loan are completed.

#### (ii) Financial assets carried at cost

Financial assets carried at cost include unquoted equity instruments included in available-for-sale financial assets that are not carried at fair value because their fair value cannot be reliably measured. If there is objective evidence that such investments are impaired, the impairment loss is calculated as the difference between the carrying amount of the investment and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

All impairment losses in respect of these investments are recognized in profit or loss and cannot be reversed.

#### (iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognized by transferring the cumulative loss that is recognized in other comprehensive income to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. The cumulative loss that is reclassified from other comprehensive income to profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and amortisation, and the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognized in profit or loss. Changes in impairment provisions attributable to time value are reflected as a component of interest income.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale debt security increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognized in profit or loss. However, any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale equity security is recognized in other comprehensive income.

#### (iv) Non financial assets

Other non financial assets, other than deferred taxes, are assessed at each reporting date for any indications of impairment. The recoverable amount of non financial assets is the greater of their fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.

All impairment losses in respect of non financial assets are recognized in profit or loss and reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Any impairment loss reversed is only reversed to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

## (i) Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

## (j) Credit related commitments

In the normal course of business, the Bank enters into credit related commitments, comprising undrawn loan commitments, letters of credit and quarantees.

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Bank to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee liability is recognized initially at fair value net of associated transaction costs, and is measured subsequently at the higher of the amount initially recognized less cumulative amortization or the amount of provision for losses under the guarantee. Provisions for losses under financial guarantees and other credit related commitments are recognized when losses are considered probable and can be measured reliably.

Financial guarantee liabilities and provisions for other credit related commitment are included in other liabilities. Loan commitments are not recognized, except for the followings:

- · loan commitments that the Bank designates as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- if the Bank has a past practice of selling the assets resulting from its loan commitments shortly after origination, then the loan commitments in the same class are treated as derivative instruments
- loan commitments that can be settled net in cash or by delivering or issuing another financial instrument
- commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate.

#### (k) Share capital

#### (i) Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

#### (ii) Share premium

Any amount paid in excess of par value of shares issued is recognized as share premium.

#### (iii) Dividends

The ability of the Bank to declare and pay dividends is subject to the rules and regulations of the Armenian legislation.

Dividends in relation to ordinary shares are reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings in the period when they are declared.

#### (I) Taxation

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items of other comprehensive income or transactions with shareholders recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized within other comprehensive income or directly within equity.

Current tax expense is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized for the following temporary differences: goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit and temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries where the parent is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

## (I) Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which the Bank expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences, unused tax losses and credits can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

#### (m) Income and expense recognition

Interest income and expense are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Loan origination fees, loan servicing fees and other fees that are considered to be integral to the overall profitability of a loan, together with the related transaction costs, are deferred and amortized to interest income over the estimated life of the financial instrument using the effective interest method.

Other fees, commissions and other income and expense items are recognized in profit or loss when the corresponding service is provided.

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date that the dividend is declared.

Payments made under operating leases are recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognized as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

#### (n) Leases

#### Finance - Bank as lessee

The Bank recognises finance leases as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at the date of commencement of the lease term at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. In calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments the discount factor used is the interest rate implicit in the lease, when it is practicable to determine; otherwise, the Bank's incremental borrowing rate is used. Initial direct costs incurred are included as part of the asset. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to periods during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

The costs identified as directly attributable to activities performed by the lessee for a finance lease, are included as part of the amount recognised as an asset under the lease.

#### Finance - Bank as lessor

The Bank recognises lease receivables at value equal to the net investment in the lease, starting from the date of commencement of the lease term. Finance income is based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding. Initial direct costs are included in the initial measurement of the lease receivables.

#### Operating - Bank as lessee

Leases of assets under which the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term and included into other operating expenses.

## (n) Leases (continued)

#### Operating - Bank as lessor

The Bank presents assets subject to operating leases in the statement of financial position according to the nature of the asset. Lease income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The aggregate cost of incentives provided to lessees is recognised as a reduction of rental income over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Initial direct costs incurred specifically to earn revenues from an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset.

## (o) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Bank's financial statements are disclosed below. The Bank intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

#### IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 *Financial Instruments* which reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces IAS 39 *Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement* and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but comparative information is not compulsory. Early application of previous versions of IFRS 9 (2009, 2010 and 2013) is permitted if the date of initial application is before 1 February 2015. The adoption of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Bank's financial assets, but no impact on the classification and measurement of the Bank's financial liabilities.

#### Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments clarify the principle in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The amendments are effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Bank given that the Bank has not used a revenue-based method to depreciate its non-current assets.

#### Annual improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

These improvements are effective from 1 July 2014 and are not expected to have a material impact on the Bank . They include:

#### IFRS 2 Share-based Payment

This improvement is applied prospectively and clarifies various issues relating to the definitions of performance and service conditions which are vesting conditions, including:

- ► A performance condition must contain a service condition;
- A performance target must be met while the counterparty is rendering service;
- A performance target may relate to the operations or activities of an entity, or to those of another entity in the same group;
- A performance condition may be a market or non-market condition;
- ▶ If the counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases to provide service during the vesting period, the service condition is not satisfied.

## (o) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

#### IFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that all contingent consideration arrangements classified as liabilities (or assets) arising from a business combination should be subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss whether or not they fall within the scope of IFRS 9 (or IAS 39, as applicable).

#### IFRS 8 Operating Segments

The amendments are applied retrospectively and clarify that:

- An entity must disclose the judgments made by management in applying the aggregation criteria in paragraph 12 of IFRS 8, including a brief description of operating segments that have been aggregated and the economic characteristics (e.g., sales and gross margins) used to assess whether the segments are 'similar':
- The reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision maker, similar to the required disclosure for segment liabilities.

## IFRS 13 Short-term Receivables and Payables - Amendments to IFRS 13

This amendment to IFRS 13 clarifies in the Basis for Conclusions that short-term receivables and payables with no stated interest rates can be measured at invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial.

#### IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that the asset may be revalued by reference to observable data on either the gross or the net carrying amount. In addition, the accumulated depreciation or amortisation is the difference between the gross and carrying amounts of the asset.

## IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that a management entity (an entity that provides key management personnel services) is a related party subject to the related party disclosures. In addition, an entity that uses a management entity is required to disclose the expenses incurred for management services.

#### Annual improvements 2011-2013 Cycle

These improvements are effective from 1 July 2014 and are not expected to have a material impact on the Bank. They include:

#### IFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies for the scope exceptions within IFRS 3 that:

- Joint arrangements, not just joint ventures, are outside the scope of IFRS 3
- ► This scope exception applies only to the accounting in the financial statements of the joint arrangement itself

#### IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that the portfolio exception in IFRS 13 can be applied not only to financial assets and financial liabilities, but also to other contracts within the scope of IFRS 9 (or IAS 39, as applicable).

## (o) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

#### IAS 40 Investment Property

The description of ancillary services in IAS 40 differentiates between investment property and owner-occupied property (i.e., property, plant and equipment). The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that IFRS 3, and not the description of ancillary services in IAS 40, is used to determine if the transaction is the purchase of an asset or business combination.

Meaning of effective IFRSs - Amendments to IFRS 1

The amendment clarifies in the Basis for Conclusions that an entity may choose to apply either a current standard or a new standard that is not yet mandatory, but permits early application, provided either standard is applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the entity's first IFRS financial statements. This amendment to IFRS 1 has no impact on the Bank, since the Bank is an existing IFRS preparer.

Annual improvements 2012-2014 Cycle

These improvements are effective on or after 1 January 2016 and are not expected to have a material impact on the Bank. They include:

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - changes in methods of disposal

Assets (or disposal groups) are generally disposed of either through sale or through distribution to owners. The amendment to IFRS 5 clarifies that changing from one of these disposal methods to the other should not be considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is therefore no interruption of the application of the requirements in IFRS 5. The amendment also clarifies that changing the disposal method does not change the date of classification. The amendment must be applied prospectively to changes in methods of disposal that occur in annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - servicing contracts

IFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a transferred asset that is derecognised in its entirety. The Board was asked whether servicing contracts constitute continuing involvement for the purposes of applying these disclosure requirements. The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance for continuing involvement in paragraphs IFRS 7.B30 and IFRS 7.42C in order to assess whether the disclosures are required. The amendment must be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted. The amendment is to be applied such that the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute continuing involvement will need to be done retrospectively. However, the required disclosures would not need to be provided for any period beginning before the annual period in which the entity first applies the amendments.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Applicability of the Offsetting Disclosures to Condensed Interim Financial Statements

In December 2011, IFRS 7 was amended to add guidance on offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities. In the effective date and transition for that amendment IFRS 7 states that "An entity shall apply those amendments for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim periods within those annual periods. The interim disclosure standard, IAS 34, does not reflect this requirement, however, and it is not clear whether those disclosures are required in the condensed interim financial report.

The amendment removes the phrase 'and interim periods within those annual periods', clarifying that these IFRS 7 disclosures are not required in the condensed interim financial report. The amendment must be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting - disclosure of information 'elsewhere in the interim financial report'

The amendment states that the required interim disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the greater interim financial report (e.g., in the management commentary or risk report). The Board specified that the other information within the interim financial report must be available to users on the same terms as the interim financial statements and at the same time. If users do not have access to the other information in this manner, then the interim financial report is incomplete. The amendment should be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

## 4. Net interest income

		2014 AMD'000	2013 AMD′000
	Interest income Loans to customers	2,435,638	2,583,833
	Available-for-sale financial assets	446,084	389,999
	Amounts due from banks	361,515	724,546
	Amounts receivable under reverse repurchase agreements	1,440	7,950
	Cash and cash equivalents Other	181 939	29,860 681
	Ottlei	3,245,797	3,736,869
	Interest expense		
	Current accounts and deposits from customers	1,656,496	1,449,426
	Other borrowed funds	326,898	477,657
	Deposits and balances from banks	286,404	392,050
	Amounts payable under repurchase agreements Other	37,870 9,973	26,361
	Other	2,317,641	2,345,494
	Net interest income	928,156	1,391,375
5.	Fee and commission income		
		2014	2013
		AMD'000	AMD'000
	Account servicing	24,985	19,600
	Cash entry and withdrawal	22,449	22,092
	Credit card maintenance	21,903	24,753
	Remittances	15,961	20,406
	Other	6,418	4,922
		91,716	91,773
6.	Fee and commission expense		
Ο.	r cc and commission expense	2014	2013
		AMD'000	AMD'000
	Plastic card services	31,787	31,219
	Remittances	5,676	8,367
	Inquiries	4,795	5,006
	Other	6,149	3,115
		48,407	47,707
7	Not foreign exchange income		
7.	Net foreign exchange income	2014	2013
		AMD'000	AMD'000
	Gain/(loss) from revaluation of financial assets and liabilities	549,700	(6,077)
	(Loss)/gain on spot transactions	(64,532)	58,197
		485,168	52,120

## 8. Other operating expense, net

	2014 AMD′000	2013 AMD′000
Fines and penalties received	18,805	44,357
Payments to state deposit insurance fund	(45,905)	(41,379)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of non-current assets	(14,049)	335
Fines and penalties paid	(10,033)	(14,200)
Other expenses	(20,386)	(13,745)
	(71,568)	(24,632)

# 9. Impairment losses

	2014 AMD'000	2013 AMD'000
Loans to customers Other impairments	1,289,694 16,125	720,129 5,021
	1,305,819	725,150

Impairment losses are disclosed in Note 15 and Note 17.

## 10. Other general administrative expenses

	2014 AMD′000	2013 AMD′000
Depreciation and amortisation	89,422	94,422
Advertising and marketing	68,585	72,100
Legal services	58,375	22,564
Maintenance of computer software	44,511	43,027
Repairs and maintenance	39,799	35,816
Insurance	33,371	29,145
Taxes other than on income	32,239	48,503
Security	29,124	30,721
Professional services	22,797	23,085
Communications and information services	19,785	21,739
Maintenance of cars	17,102	15,717
Operating lease expense	13,252	12,402
Office supplies	9,177	11,208
Travel expenses	8,758	15,222
Membership expenses	7,560	7,470
Trainings	7,196	5,254
Other	17,742	17,150
	518,795	505,545

## 11. Income tax (expense)/ benefit

_	2014 AMD′000	2013 AMD′000
Current period tax expense	_	(66,939)
Prior years income tax correction	-	15,194
Deferred taxation movement due to origination and reversal of temporary differences	(15,367)	87.929
unterences		
Total income tax (expense)/ benefit	(15,367)	36,184

In 2014 applicable tax rate for current and deferred tax is 20% (2013: 20%).

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

	2014 AMD′000	%	2013 AMD′000	%
Loss before tax	(1,091,120)	_	(385,412)	-
Income tax benefit at the applicable tax rate Non-deductible expenses Unrecognised deferred tax assets	218,224 (13,619) (219,972)	(20%) 1% 20%	77,082 (40,898) 	(20%) 11% –
	(15,367)	1%	36,184	(9%)

## (a) Deferred tax liabilities

Temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes give rise to net deferred tax liabilities as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

The deductible temporary differences do not expire under current tax legislation, except for the tax loss carry forwards which can be carried forward for 5 subsequent years.

Movements in temporary differences for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 are presented as follows:

			Recognized in	5.4
	Balance	Recognized in	other comprehensive	Balance 31 December
AMD'000	1 January 2014	profit or loss	loss	2014
Cash and cash equivalents	(1,373)	506	_	(867)
Available-for-sale financial assets	(60,316)	_	31,344	(28,972)
Amounts due from banks	(9,940)	(8,730)	_	(18,670)
Loans to customers	43,002	(125,411)	_	(82,409)
Property and equipment	1,504	848	_	2,352
Other assets	987	315	_	1,302
Tax losses	_	338,103	_	338,103
Other liabilities	(389)	(1,026)	_	(1,415)
Gross deferred tax (liability)/ asset	(26,525)	204,605	31,344	209,424
Unrecognised deferred tax assets		(219,972)	<u> </u>	(219,972)
	(26,525)	(15,367)	31,344	(10,548)

## 11. Income tax benefit (continued)

## (a) Deferred tax liabillities (continued)

			Recognized in other	
AMD'000	Balance 1 January 2013	Recognized in profit or loss	comprehensive income	Balance 31 December 2013
Cash and cash equivalents Available-for-sale financial	(6,060)	4,687	_	(1,373)
assets	(12,056)	_	(48,260)	(60,316)
Amounts due from banks	(24,243)	14,303	_	(9,940)
Loans to customers	(27,358)	70,360	_	43,002
Property and equipment	656	848	_	1,504
Other assets	1,304	(317)	_	987
Other liabilities	1,563	(1,952)		(389)
	(66,194)	87,929	(48,260)	(26,525)

## (b) Income tax recognized in other comprehensive (loss) / income

The tax effects relating to components of other comprehensive (loss) / income for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 comprise the following:

	31	31 December 2014			31 December 2013		
AMD'000	Amount before tax	Tax expense	Amount net-of-tax	Amount before tax	Tax expense	Amount net-of-tax	
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets	(119,231)	23,846	(95,385)	247,386	(49,477)	197,909	
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets transferred to profit or	(27.400)	7 400	(20,000)	(4 004)	1 217	(4.940)	
loss	(37,488)	7,498	(29,990)	(6,086)	1,217	(4,869)	
Other comprehensive (loss) / income	(156,719)	31,344	(125,375)	241,300	(48,260)	193,040	

## 12. Cash and cash equivalents

	2014 AMD′000	2013 AMD′000
Cash on hand	575,087	509,408
Nostro accounts with the CBA, including obligatory reserves Nostro accounts with other banks	3,235,811	7,131,971
OECD banks	335,348	496,237
Other foreign banks	95,797	188,225
Largest 10 Armenian banks	2,027	1,865
Small and medium size Armenian banks	87	86
Total nostro accounts with other banks	433,259	686,413
Total cash and cash equivalents as shown in the statement of cash flows	4,244,157	8,327,792
Accrued interest	16	34
Total cash and cash equivalents	4,244,173	8,327,826

Nostro accounts with the Central Bank of Armenia are related to settlement activity and are available for withdrawal at the end of the year.

Banks are required to maintain cash deposit (obligatory reserve) with the CBA, equal to 2% of the amounts attracted in Armenian drams and 20% (effective from 24 December 2014) of the amounts attracted in foreign currency. The Bank's ability to withdraw such deposit is not restricted by the statutory legislation, however, if the Bank fails to comply with minimum average monthly amount of reserve for amounts attracted in Armenian drams, and minimum daily amount of reserve for amounts attracted in foreign currency, the sanctions may apply.

## 12. Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

During December 2014 the CBA revised the procedure for obligatory reservation of attracted funds in foreign currency. The new rules, which came into effect since December 18, 2014, increased the reservation requirements against funds attracted in foreign currency and required to keep the amount of the above mentioned reserve on nostro account of the Central Bank of Armenia on daily basis.

Due to the above mentioned changes the Bank classified obligatory reserves for amounts attracted in foreign currency in amount of AMD 6,455,766 thousand as Amounts due from banks. As of December 31, 2013, obligatory reserves for amounts attracted in foreign currency in amount of AMD 3,353,861 thousand are included in cash and cash equivalents.

As of 31 December 2014 included in Nostro accounts with the CBA, is the amount of obligatory reserve of AMD 105,509 thousand for amounts attracted in Armenian drams (2013: AMD 133,891 thousand).

#### Available-for-sale financial assets

	2014 AMD′000	2013 AMD′000
Held by the bank		
Debt and other fixed-income instruments		
Government securities of the Republic of Armenia	_	2,602,643
Securities of international financial institutions	49,727	50,107
	49,727	2,652,750
Equity instruments		
Corporate shares	13,160	13,160
	13,160	13,160
	62,887	2,665,910
Pledged under sale and repurchase agreements Debt and other fixed-income instruments		
Government securities of the Republic of Armenia	3,118,896	773,337
·	3,118,896	773,337

The Bank has transactions to lend securities and to sell securities under agreements to repurchase.

The securities lent or sold under agreements to repurchase are transferred to a third party and the Bank receives cash in exchange. These financial assets may be repledged or resold by counterparties in the absence of default by the Bank, but the counterparty has an obligation to return the securities at the maturity of the contract. The Bank has determined that it retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these securities and therefore has not derecognized them. These securities are presented as "pledged under sale and repurchase agreements" in note 13. The cash received is recognized as a financial asset and a financial liability is recognized for the obligation to repay the purchase price for this collateral.

These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to standard lending, and securities borrowing and lending activities.

Included in available-for-sale financial assets are non-quoted equity securities:

Country of		% Controlled		2014	2013
incorporation	Main activity	2014	2013	AMD'000	AMD'000
Republic of Armenia	Payment system	1.25%	1.25%	12,143	12,143
Belgium	Money transfer	O%	0%	1,017	1,017
				13,160	13,160
	Republic of Armenia	incorporation Main activity  Republic of Armenia Payment system	Republic of Armenia Payment system 1.25%	Republic of Armenia Payment system 1.25% 2014 2013	Republic of Armenia Payment system 1.25% 1.25% 12,143  Belgium Money transfer 0% 0% 1,017

## 13. Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Investments without a determinable fair value

Available-for-sale equity investments stated at cost comprise unquoted equity securities in the money transfer industry. There is no market for these investments and there have not been any recent transactions that provide evidence of the current fair value. In addition, discounted cash flow techniques yield a wide range of fair values due to the uncertainty regarding future cash flows in this industry.

#### 14. Amounts due from banks

	2014	2013	
	AMD'000	AMD'000	
Obligatory reserve with the CBA, related to attracted funds in foreign			
currency	6,455,766	-	
Credit card settlement deposit with the CBA	142,500	140,000	
Derivative instruments (currency swap)	882	-	
Loans and deposits			
Largest 10 Armenian banks	4,488,394	1,439,095	
Small and medium size Armenian banks	4,782,584	3,476,360	
OECD banks	63,881	54,557	
Total loans and deposits	9,334,859	4,970,012	
Total amounts due from banks	15,934,007	5,110,012	

During December 2014 the CBA revised the procedure for obligatory reservation of attracted funds in foreign currency. The new rules, which came into effect since December 18, 2014, increased the reservation requirements against attracted in foreign currency funds and required to keep the amount of the above mentioned reserve on nostro account of the Central Bank of Armenia on daily basis.

Due to the above mentioned changes the Bank classified obligatory reserves for amounts attracted in foreign currency in amount of AMD 6,455,766 thousand as Amounts due from banks. As of December 31, 2013, obligatory reserves for amounts attracted in foreign currency in amount of AMD 3,353,861 thousand are included in cash and cash equivalents.

The currency swap agreement was concluded with one of the 10 largest Armenian banks with the volume of USD 300,000 and 1 USD=471.46 AMD spot and forward exchange rates. The USD was repurchased on January 12, 2015. AMD was attracted at 22%p.a.

As at 31 December 2014 included in loans and deposits with OECD banks is AMD 63,881 thousand (31 December 2013: AMD 54,557 thousand) which represents a blocked deposit in HSBC Bank Plc for membership in Europay International.

No amounts due from banks are impaired or past due.

Concentration of amounts due from banks

As at 31 December 2014 the Bank has eight banks (31 December 2013: two banks), whose balances exceed 10% of equity. The gross value of these balances as at 31 December 2014 is AMD 15,870,127 thousand (31 December 2013: AMD 2,877,395 thousand).

## 15. Loans to customers

	2014 AMD′000	2013 AMD′000
Loans to corporate customers		AIVID 000
Loans to large corporates	16,505,945	14,564,691
Loans to small and medium size companies	1,586,621	680,371
Total loans to corporate customers	18,092,566	15,245,062
Loans to retail customers		
Mortgage loans	9,276,622	6,682,155
Consumer loans secured by real estate	1,558,204	1,519,534
Small business loans	748,681	603,208
Auto loans	680,899	792,802
Credit card loans	317,024	257,523
Consumer loans with salary domiciliation	295,841	294,197
Other	33,607	53,148
Total loans to retail customers	12,910,878	10,202,567
Gross loans to customers	31,003,444	25,447,629
Impairment allowance	(2,568,811)	(1,342,468)
Net loans to customers	28,434,633	24,105,161

Movements in the loan impairment allowance by classes of loans to customers for the year ended 31 December 2014 are as follows:

	Loans to corporate customers AMD′000	Loans to retail customers AMD′000	Total AMD′000
Balance at the beginning of the year Net charge Write-offs	1,163,664 1,246,274 (17,725)	178,804 43,420 (45,626)	1,342,468 1,289,694 (63,351)
Balance at the end of the year	2,392,213	176,598	2,568,811

Movements in the loan impairment allowance by classes of loans to customers for the year ended 31 December 2013 are as follows:

	Loans to corporate customers AMD'000	Loans to retail customers AMD'000	Total AMD′000
Balance at the beginning of the year	492,242	146,774	639,016
Net charge	671,422	48,707	720,129
Write-offs		(16,677)	(16,677)
Balance at the end of the year	1,163,664	178,804	1,342,468

## (a) Credit quality of loans to customers

The following table provides information on the credit quality of loans to customers as at 31 December 2014:

	Gross Ioans AMD′000	Impairment allowance AMD'000	Net loans AMD'000	Impairment allowance to gross loans %
Loans to corporate customers				
Loans to large corporates  Loans secured with cash collateral	2 007 20E		2 007 205	0%
Other loans without individual signs of impairment Impaired loans:	3,087,305 6,561,264	(75,454)	3,087,305 6,485,810	1.15%
- not overdue	782,946	(15,659)	767,287	2.0%
- overdue more than 90 days and less than 1 year	949,628	(322,874)	626,754	34.0%
- overdue more than 1 year	5,124,802	(1,937,644)	3,187,158	37.8%
Total impaired loans	6,857,376	(2,276,177)	4,581,199	33.2%
Total loans to large corporates	16,505,945	(2,351,631)	14,154,314	14.2%
Loans to small and medium size companies Loans without individual signs of impairment Impaired loans:	1,356,185	(15,598)	1,340,587	1.15%
- overdue more than 90 days and less than 1 year	45,193	(903)	44,290	2.0%
-overdue more than 1 year	185,243	(24,081)	161,162	13.0%
Total impaired loans	230,436	(24,984)	205,452	10.8%
Total loans to small and medium size companies	1,586,621	(40,582)	1,546,039	2.6%
Total loans to corporate customers	18,092,566	(2,392,213)	15,700,353	13.22%
Loans to retail customers				
Mortgage loans				
-not overdue	9,091,109	(18,182)	9,072,927	0.2%
- not overdue, but impaired	8,999	(1,800)	7,199	20.0%
- overdue less than 30 days	55,968 87,375	(22,387) (34,950)	33,581 52,425	40.0% 40.0%
- overdue 31-90 days - overdue 91-180 days	14,810	(5,924)	8,886	40.0%
- overdue 181-270 days	18,361	(7,344)	11,017	40.0%
Total mortgage loans	9,276,622	(90,587)	9,186,035	1.0%
Consumer loans secured by real estate				
- not overdue	1,502,102	(3,004)	1,499,098	0.2%
- not overdue, but impaired	9,481	(2,655)	6,826	28.0%
- overdue less than 30 days	8,191	(4,587)	3,604	56.0%
- overdue 31-90 days	12,836	(7,188)	5,648	56.0%
- overdue 91-180 days	9,721 6,612	(5,444)	4,277	56.0% 56.0%
- overdue 181-270 days - overdue more than 271 days	9,261	(3,703) (5,186)	2,909 4,075	56.0%
3	1,558,204	(31,767)	1,526,437	2.0%
Total consumer loans secured by real estate Small business loans	1,550,204	(31,707)	1,520,437	2.070
- not overdue	702,792	(1,406)	701,386	0.2%
- not overdue, but impaired	13,941	(3,485)	10,456	25.0%
- overdue less than 30 days	11,488	(5,744)	5,744	50.0%
- overdue 31-90 days	13,229	(6,615)	6,614	50.0%
- overdue 91-180 days	7,231	(3,615)	3,616	50.0%
Total small business loans	748,681	(20,865)	727,816	2.8%
Auto loans				
- not overdue	644,516	(1,289)	643,227	0.2%
- not overdue, but impaired	3,334	(817)	2,517	24.5%
- overdue less than 30 days	8,775 12,070	(4,300) (6,945)	4,475 7,125	49.0%
- overdue 31-90 days - overdue 181-270 days	13,970 6,736	(6,845) (3,301)	7,125 3,435	49.0% 49.0%
-	3,568	(1,748)	3,435 1,820	49.0%
- overdue more than 271 days	680,899	(18,300)	662,599	2.7%
Total auto loans Credit card loans		(10,300)	002,077	2.170

## (a) Credit quality of loans to customers (continued)

		Impairment		Impairment allowance to
	Gross Ioans	allowance	Net Ioans	gross loans
	AMD'000	AMD'000	AMD'000	%
- not overdue	300,157	(600)	299,557	0.2%
<ul> <li>not overdue, but impaired</li> </ul>	16,867	(8,096)	8,771	48.0%
Total credit card loans	317,024	(8,696)	308,328	2.7%
Consumer loans with salary domiciliation		, , ,		
- not overdue	283,726	(567)	283,159	0.2%
- overdue less than 30 days	5,014	(2,407)	2,607	48.0%
- overdue 31-90 days	3,464	(1,663)	1,801	48.0%
- overdue 91-180 days	2,673	(1,283)	1,390	48.0%
- overdue 181-270 days	964	(463)	501	48.0%
Total consumer loans with salary domiciliation	295,841	(6,383)	289,458	2.2%
Other retail loans				
- not overdue	33,607	_	33,607	0.0%
Total other retail loans	33,607		33,607	0.0%
Total loans to retail customers	12,910,878	(176,598)	12,734,280	1.37%
Total loans to customers	31,003,444	(2,568,811)	28,434,633	8.29%

The following table provides information on the credit quality of loans to customers as at 31 December 2013:

				Impairment
		Impairment		allowance to
	Gross Ioans	allowance	Net loans	gross loans
	AMD'000	AMD'000	AMD'000	%
Loans to corporate customers				
Loans to large corporates				
Loans without individual signs of impairment Impaired loans:	9,337,426	(46,687)	9,290,739	0.5%
- overdue less than 90 days	811,140	(81,114)	730,026	10.0%
- overdue more than 90 days and less than 1 year	2,836,707	(390,524)	2,446,183	13.8%
- overdue more than 1 year	1,579,418	(622,117)	957,301	39.4%
Total impaired loans	5,227,265	(1,093,755)	4,133,510	20.9%
Total loans to large corporates	14,564,691	(1,140,442)	13,424,249	7.8%
Loans to small and medium size companies				
Loans without individual signs of impairment Impaired loans:	501,694	(2,508)	499,186	0.5%
- overdue less than 90 days	178,677	(20,714)	157,963	11.6%
Total impaired loans	178,677	(20,714)	157,963	11.6%
Total loans to small and medium size companies	680,371	(23,222)	657,149	3.4%
·	<del></del>		-	7.63%
Total loans to corporate customers	15,245,062	(1,163,664)	14,081,398	7.63%
Loans to retail customers				
Mortgage loans				
- not overdue	6,497,746	(64,978)	6,432,768	1.0%
- not overdue, but impaired	64,121	(12,824)	51,297	20.0%
- overdue less than 30 days	60,963	(12,193)	48,770	20.0%
- overdue 31-90 days	3,778	(756)	3,022	20.0%
- overdue 91-180 days	8,923	(1,785)	7,138	20.0%
- overdue 181-270 days	46,624	(9,325)	37,299	20.0%
Total mortgage loans	6,682,155	(101,861)	6,580,294	1.5%
Consumer loans secured by real estate				
- not overdue	1,480,807	(14,809)	1,465,998	1.0%
- not overdue, but impaired	7,852	(1,570)	6,282	20.0%
- overdue less than 30 days	10,567	(2,113)	8,454	20.0%
- overdue 31-90 days	6,836	(1,367)	5,469	20.0%
- overdue 91-180 days	5,869	(1,174)	4,695	20.0%
- overdue 181-270 days	6,622	(1,324)	5,298	20.0%
- overdue more than 271 days	981	(196)	785	20.0%
Total consumer loans secured by real estate Small business loans	1,519,534	(22,553)	1,496,981	1.5%
- not overdue	549,497	(2,747)	546,750	0.5%
- not overdue - not overdue, but impaired	4,171	(834)	3,337	20.0%
	.,	(33.)	3,55.	

## (a) Credit quality of loans to customers (continued)

	Gross Ioans AMD'000	Impairment allowance AMD'000	Net loans AMD'000	Impairment allowance to gross loans %
- overdue less than 30 days	21,058	(4,212)	16,846	20.0%
- overdue 31-90 days	4,302	(860)	3,442	20.0%
- overdue more than 271 days	24,180	(4,836)	19,344	20.0%
Total small business loans	603,208	(13,489)	589,719	2.2%
Auto loans				
- not overdue	769,278	(15,386)	753,892	2.0%
- overdue less than 30 days	9,835	(3,934)	5,901	40.0%
- overdue 31-90 days	891	(357)	534	40.1%
- overdue 91-180 days	4,626	(1,850)	2,776	40.0%
- overdue 181-270 days	5,860	(2,344)	3,516	40.0%
- overdue more than 271 days	2,312	(925)	1,387	40.0%
Total auto loans	792,802	(24,796)	768,006	3.1%
Credit card loans				
- not overdue	249,623	(4,992)	244,631	2.0%
- not overdue, but impaired	7,900	(3,950)	3,950	50.0%
Total credit card loans	257,523	(8,942)	248,581	3.5%
Consumer loans with salary domiciliation				
- not overdue	291,534	(5,831)	285,703	2.0%
- overdue less than 30 days	2,406	(1,203)	1,203	50.0%
- overdue 31-90 days	73	(37)	36	50.0%
- overdue 91-180 days	184	(92)	92	50.0%
Total consumer loans with salary				
domiciliation	294,197	(7,163)	287,034	2.4%
Other retail loans				
- not overdue	53,148		53,148	0.0%
Total other retail loans	53,148		53,148	0.0%
Total loans to retail customers	10,202,567	(178,804)	10,023,763	1.8%
Total loans to customers	25,447,629	(1,342,468)	24,105,161	5.3%

## (b) Key assumptions and judgments for estimating the loan impairment

#### (i) Loans to corporate customers

The Bank estimates loan impairment for loans to corporate customers based on an analysis of the future cash flows for loans with individual signs of impairment and based on its past loss experience for portfolios of loans for which no individual signs of impairment has been identified.

In determining the impairment allowance for loans to corporate customers, management makes the following key assumptions:

• for non-impaired loans the Bank creates a collective provision of 0% on loans secured with cash collateral and 1.15% on other commercial non-impaired loans considering the economic environment and market loss experience;

The impairment allowance on impaired loans to corporate customers would have been AMD 612,819 thousand higher (31 December 2013: AMD 192,740 thousand) if the market value of the collateral have been assessed 15% lower as at the reporting date.

During the year ended 31 December 2014 the Bank has not renegotiated commercial loans that would otherwise be past due or impaired (31 December 2013: AMD 14,050 thousand). Such restructuring activity is aimed at managing customer relationships and maximising collection opportunities.

## (b) Key assumptions and judgments for estimating the loan impairment

#### (ii) Loans to retail customers

The Bank estimates loan impairment for loans to retail customers based on its past historical and market loss experience on each type of loan. The significant assumptions used by management in determining the impairment losses for loans to retail customers include the following loss estimates:

- Not impaired retail loans up to 0.2%
- The cost associated with the collection of not overdue, but impaired loans will not exceed:
  - a) mortgage loans 20%,
  - b) consumer loans secured by real estate 28%,
  - c) small business loans 25%,
  - d) auto loans 24.5%,
  - e) consumer loans with salary domiciliation 24%.
  - f) credit cards 48%

The cost associated with the collection of impaired loans will not exceed

- a) mortgage loans 40%,
- b) consumer loans secured by real estate 56%,
- c) small business loans 50%,
- d) auto loans 49%
- e) credit cards and consumer loans with salary domiciliation 48%.

## (c) Analysis of collateral

#### (i) Loans to corporate customers

Loans to corporate customers are subject to individual credit appraisal and impairment testing. The general creditworthiness of a corporate customer tends to be the most relevant indicator of credit quality of the loan extended to it. However, collateral provides additional security and the Bank generally requests corporate borrowers to provide it.

The fair value of collateral that the Bank holds relating to loans with individual signs of impairment at 31 December 2014 amounts to AMD 6,032,999 thousand (2013: AMD 6,037,855 thousand).

#### (ii) Loans to retail customers

Mortgage loans and consumer loans secured by real estate are secured by the underlying housing real estate. The Bank's policy is to issue mortgage loans with a loan-to-value ratio of a maximum of 70% at the date of loan issuance. Small business loans are secured by real estate. Auto loans are secured by the underlying cars. Consumer loans with salary domiciliation and credit card loans are secured by salaries.

#### (iii) Repossessed collateral

During the year ended 31 December 2014 the Bank has not obtained assets by taking possession of real estate collateral of loans to corporate customers (31 December 2013: AMD 80,313 thousand).

During the year ended 31 December 2014 the Bank obtained real estate and vehicles with a fair value of AMD 62,796 thousand by taking possession of collateral for loans to retail customers (31 December 2013: AMD 64,666 thousand). Part of the aforementioned repossessed collateral was sold during 2014 in amount of AMD 33,485 thousand.

The Banks intention is to sell these assets as soon as it is practicable.

## (d) Industry and geographical analysis of the loan portfolio

Loans to customers were issued primarily to customers located within the Republic of Armenia who operate in the following economic sectors:

	2014 AMD′000	2013 AMD′000
•		
Energy and gas	6,442,671	3,217,883
Trade	4,876,379	5,125,933
Manufacturing	2,535,465	2,922,557
Agriculture, forestry and timber	2,379,729	2,364,562
Transport	1,790,352	1,591,286
Public catering and other services	67,970	22,841
Loans to retail customers	12,910,878	10,202,567
	31,003,444	25,447,629
Impairment allowance	(2,568,811)	(1,342,468)
	28,434,633	24,105,161

## (e) Significant credit exposures

As at 31 December 2014 the Bank has nine borrowers or groups of connected borrowers (31 December 2013: seven), whose loan balances exceed 10% of equity. The gross value of these loans as at 31 December 2014 is AMD 14,782,423 thousand (31 December 2013: AMD 9,169,653 thousand).

## (f) Loan maturities

The maturity of the loan portfolio is presented in note 24 (d), which shows the remaining period from the reporting date to the contractual maturity of the loans.

## 16. Property, equipment and intangible assets

AMD'000 Cost	Land and buildings	Computers and communi- cation equipment	Fixtures and fittings	Motor vehicles	Leasehold improvements	Intangible assets	Total
Balance at 1 January 2014 Additions Disposals Balance at 31 December 2014	942,142 2,937 - 945,079	283,802 32,191 (3,411) 312,582	252,531 11,012 (4,920) 258,623	53,700 - - - 53,700	21,193 1,576 ————————————————————————————————————	163,228 1,624 - 164,852	1,716,596 49,340 (8,331) 1,757,605
Depreciation and amortization Balance at 1 January 2014 Depreciation and amortization	(123,521)	(191,050)	(168,799)	(53,700)	(17,064)	(89,742)	(643,876)
for the year Disposals Balance at 31 December 2014	(19,720) - (143,241)	(33,802) 2,651 (222,201)	(30,126) 4,843 (194,082)	(53,700)	(2,732) - (19,796)	(3,042) - (92,784)	(89,422) 7,494 (725,804)
Carrying amount Balance at 31 December 2014	801,838	90,381	64,541		2,973	72,068	1,031,801
Cost Balance at 1 January 2013 Additions Disposals	928,585 13,557 —	287,298 7,677 (11,173)	231,995 24,874 (4,338)	53,700 - 	21,193 - -	162,098 1,130 –	1,684,869 47,238 (15,511)
Balance at 31 December 2013 Depreciation and amortization Balance at 1 January 2013	942,142 (104,574)	283,802 (160,800)	252,531 (144,418)	(53,700)	<u>21,193</u> (14,706)	(86,422)	1,716,596 (564,620)
Depreciation and amortization for the year Disposals Balance at 31 December 2013	(18,947) - (123,521)	(41,178) 10,928 (191,050)	(28,619) 4,238 (168,799)	(53,700)	(2,358) - (17,064)	(3,320)	(94,422) 15,166 (643,876)
Carrying amount	<u>818,621</u>	92,752	83,732		4,129	73,486	1,072,720
Balance at 31 December 2013							

There are no capitalised borrowing costs related to the acquisition or construction of property and equipment during the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: nil).

## 17. Other assets

_	2014 AMD′000	2013 AMD′000
Receivables under money transfer and clearing systems	8,456	59,595
Other receivables	1,994	26,700
Total other financial assets	10,450	86,295
Repossessed assets	275,586	361,069
Income tax prepayments	51,205	_
Prepayments for purchase of non-current assets	53,500	1,595
Other Prepayments	47,892	87,195
Other	22,127	24,411
Total other non-financial assets	450,310	474,270
Total other assets	460,760	560,565

In 2014 receivables in amount of AMD 16,125 thousand were impaired and written off (2013: AMD 5,021 thousand).

The nature and net carrying value of repossessed assets as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

	2014 AMD′000	2013 AMD'000	
Land and buildings	275,586	361,069	

Management believes that the carrying amount of repossessed assets approximately equals their fair value less costs to sell as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

## 18. Deposits and balances from banks

	2014 AMD′000	2013 AMD′000
Loans and term deposits Vostro accounts	5,139,204 8	2,439,528 349
	5,139,212	2,439,877

As at 31 December 2014 the Bank has one bank (31 December 2013: one), whose balances exceed 10% of equity. The gross value of these balances as at 31 December 2014 is AMD 3,912,610 thousand (31 December 2013: AMD 2,076,446 thousand).

## 19. Amounts payable under repurchase agreements

	2014 AMD′000	2013 AMD′000
Amounts due to the CBA	3,057,139	750,641
	3,057,139	750,641

The Bank has transactions to lend securities and to sell securities under agreements to repurchase and to purchase securities under agreements to resell.

The securities lent or sold under agreements to repurchase are transferred to a third party and the Bank receives cash in exchange. These financial assets may be re-pledged or resold by counterparties in the absence of default by the Bank, but the counterparty has an obligation to return the securities at the maturity of the contract. The Bank has determined that it retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these securities and therefore has not derecognized them. These securities of AMD 3,118,896 thousand (31 December 2013: AMD 773,337 thousand) are presented as "pledged under sale and repurchase agreements" in note 13. The cash received is recognized as a financial asset and a financial liability is recognized for the obligation to repay the purchase price for this collateral.

These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to standard lending, and securities borrowing and lending activities.

The following table provides a summary of financial assets which have been transferred in such a way that part or all of the transferred financial assets do not qualify for derecognition:

	<u> </u>	Available for sale
	Transferred financial asset	Gov. debt securities 2014
Carrying amount Assets	Repurchase agreements	3,118,896
Carrying amount associated liabilities	Repurchase agreements	3,057,139
Net position		(61,757)
	Transferred financial asset	Available for sale Gov. debt securities 2013
Carrying amount Assets		Gov. debt securities
	asset	Gov. debt securities 2013
Assets  Carrying amount	asset  Repurchase agreements	Gov. debt securities 2013 773,337

## 20. Current accounts and deposits from customers

	2014 AMD′000	2013 AMD′000
Current accounts and demand deposits	-	
- Retail	3,974,227	3,759,122
- Corporate	534,765	583,457
Term deposits		
- Retail	23,967,980	17,225,272
- Corporate	5,360,616	2,820,952
	33,837,588	24,388,803

As of 31 December 2014 the Bank maintained customer deposit balances of AMD 68,396 thousand that serve as collateral for loans and credit related commitments granted by the Bank (31 December 2013: AMD 108,820 thousand).

As of 31 December 2014 the Bank has five customers (31 December 2013: three customers), whose balances exceed 10% of equity. These balances as at 31 December 2014 are AMD 10,496,131 thousand (31 December 2013: AMD 5,752,872 thousand).

In accordance with Armenia's legislation, the Bank is obliged to repay time deposits of individuals upon demand of a depositor. In case a term deposit is repaid upon demand of the depositor prior to maturity, interest on it is paid based on the interest rate for demand deposits, unless a different interest rate is specified in the agreement.

#### 21. Other borrowed funds

	2014 AMD′000	2013 AMD′000
Loan from International Financial Corporation (IFC)	1,653,201	1,721,533
Loans from National Mortgage Company	955,760	1,013,620
Loan from OPEC Fund for International Development (OFID)	396,607	1,016,196
Loans from European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (EBRD)	342,965	878,718
Loans from European Fund for Southeast Europe (EFSE)		1,211,097
	3,348,533	5,841,164

On January 31, 2014 the Bank early repaid the loans from EFSE.

As at 31 December 2014 the Bank has two financial institutions (31 December 2013: four), whose balances exceed 10% of equity. These balances as at 31 December 2014 are AMD 2,608,961 thousand (31 December 2013: AMD 4,962,446 thousand).

#### (a) Breach of covenants

The Bank breached some of its maximum covenant thresholds with IFC, OFID and EBRD. As of the date these financial statements were authorised for issue the management did not obtain a waiver, so that these loans were payable on demand as at 31 December 2014. Accordingly, a total of AMD 2,392,773 thousand is classified as being due on demand and less than one month in the interest rate gap, liquidity and maturity tables in note 24.

#### 22. Other liabilities

_	2014 AMD′000	2013 AMD′000
Salary and similar payables	58,360	49,892
Payables to suppliers	17,273	26,060
Other financial liabilities	19,683	45,330
Total other financial liabilities	95,316	121,282
Other taxes payable	38,880	38,689
Deferred income	4,667	14,577
Income taxes payable	_	6,627
Other non-financial liabilities	7,961	8,171
Total other non-financial liabilities	51,508	68,064
Total other liabilities	146,824	189,346

## 23. Share capital and reserves

#### (a) Issued capital and share premium

The authorized, issued and outstanding share capital comprises 81,251 ordinary shares (31 December 2013: 81,251). All shares have a nominal value of AMD 100,000. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at annual and general meetings of the Bank.

## (b) Nature and purpose of reserves

Revaluation reserve for available-for-sale financial assets

The revaluation reserve for available-for-sale financial assets comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value, until the assets are derecognized or impaired.

## (c) Dividends

Dividends payable are restricted to the maximum retained earnings of the Bank, which are determined according to legislation of the Republic of Armenia. In accordance with the legislation of the Republic of Armenia, as at the reporting date no reserves are available for distribution.

## 24. Risk management

Management of risk is fundamental to the business of banking and is an essential element of the Bank's operations. The major risks faced by the Bank are those related to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

## (a) Risk management policies and procedures

The Bank's risk management policies aim to identify, analyze and manage the risks faced by the Bank, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to continuously monitor risk levels and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and procedures are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered and emerging best practice.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the oversight of the risk management framework, overseeing the management of key risks and reviewing its risk management policies and procedures as well as approving significantly large exposures. The Management Committee with the support of the Assets and Liability Committee (ALCO Committee) is responsible for monitoring and implementation of risk mitigation measures and making sure that the Bank operates within the established risk parameters.

#### b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

Market risk comprises currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risks. Market risk arises from open positions in debt and equity financial instruments, which are exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market prices and foreign currency rates.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, whilst optimizing the return on risk.

Overall authority for market risk management is vested in the ALCO Committee. Market risk limits are approved by the ALCO Committee.

The Bank manages its market risk by setting open position limits in relation to financial instrument, interest rate maturity and currency positions and stop-loss limits. These are monitored on a regular basis and reviewed and approved by the ALCO Committee.

#### (i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Bank is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on its financial position and cash flows. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may also reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected movements occur.

#### Interest rate gap analysis

Interest rate risk is managed principally through monitoring interest rate gaps. A summary of the interest gap position for major financial instruments is as follows:

	Less than	3-6		1-5	More than 5	
AMD'000	3 months	months	6-12 months	years	years	Total
31 December 2014 Interest-bearing assets Cash and cash equivalents Available-for-sale	431,351	-	-	-	-	431,351
financial assets	21,723	47,825	_	3,099,075	-	3,168,623
Amounts due from banks Loans to customers	5,982,940 1,234,582	1,673,151 3,025,717	1,614,887 5,715,775	- 11,781,182	- 6,677,377	9,270,978 28,434,633
	7,670,596	4,746,693	7,330,662	14,880,257	6,677,377	41,305,585
Interest-bearing liabilities Deposits and balances from banks Amounts payable under repurchase agreements Current accounts and deposits from customers	1,686,957 3,057,139 11,272,525	14,839 - 4,933,491	3,135,389 - 9,661,626	302,019 - 7,209,422	-	5,139,204 3,057,139 33,077,064
Other borrowed funds	2,433,565	13,999	34,604	511,001	355,364	3,348,533
	18,450,186	4,962,329	12,831,619	8,022,442	355,364	44,621,940
Interest rate gap	(10,779,590)	(215,636)	(5,500,957)	6,857,815	6,322,013	(3,316,355)

# (b) Market risk (continued)

	Less than	3-6	6-12	1-5	More than 5	
AMD'000	3 months	months	months	years	years	Total
31 December 2013 Interest-bearing assets Cash and cash					·	
equivalents Available-for-sale	684,683	-	-	-	-	684,683
financial assets	30,258	48,446	_	3,347,383	_	3,426,087
Amounts due from banks	1,840,758	3,074,697	_	_	_	4,915,455
Loans to customers	3,225,813	1,228,815	1,943,693	12,703,199	5,003,641	24,105,161
	5,781,512	4,351,958	1,943,693	16,050,582	5,003,641	33,131,386
Interest-bearing liabilities Deposits and balances						
rom banks Amounts payable under repurchase	735,498	823	677,448	1,025,759	-	2,439,528
agreements Current accounts and deposits from	750,641	_	_	-	_	750,641
customers	10,845,726	3,033,905	6,314,175	3,014,766	42,090	23,250,662
Other borrowed funds	4,854,460	19,150	41,614	454,849	471,091	5,841,164
	17,186,325	3,053,878	7,033,237	4,495,374	513,181	32,281,995
Interest rate gap	(11,404,813)	1,298,080	(5,089,544)	11,555,208	4,490,460	849,391

## Market risk (continued)

Average effective interest rates

The table below displays average effective interest rates for interest bearing assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013. These interest rates are an approximation of the yields to maturity of these assets and liabilities.

	Avorago o	2014 ffective inter	ost rato %	Avorago o	2013	rost rato %
_	Average e	nective inter	Other	Average e	Average effective inter	
	AMD	USD	currencies	AMD	USD	Other currencies
Interest bearing assets						
Available-for-sale financial						
assets	14.0%	_	_	14.0%	_	_
Amounts due from banks	_	6.1%	_	-	8.2%	-
Loans to customers	14.0%	7.4%	6.0%	14.9%	10.6%	10.3%
Interest bearing liabilities						
Deposits and balances						
from banks	19.1%	8.9%	_	8.9%	8.9%	_
Amounts payable under						
repurchase agreements	22.1%	_	-	7.8%	_	-
Current accounts and deposits from customers						
- Current accounts and						
demand deposits	4.3%	2.3%	0.4%	2.6%	2.0%	0.3%
- Term deposits	11.9%	6.1%	3.0%	11.6%	6.2%	3.1%
Other borrowed funds	8.9%	6.4%		8.7%	6.3%	

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The management of interest rate risk based on interest rate gap analysis is supplemented by monitoring the sensitivity of financial assets and liabilities.

An analysis of sensitivity of net profit or loss and equity (net of taxes) to changes in interest rates (repricing risk) based on a simplified scenario of a 100 and 100 basis point (bp) symmetrical fall or rise in all yield curves and positions of interest-bearing assets and liabilities existing as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, respectively, as follows:

	2014 AMD′000	2013 AMD′000
100 bp parallel fall	64,916	116,191
100 bp parallel rise	(64,916)	(116,191)

An analysis of sensitivity of net profit or loss and equity as a result of changes in fair value of financial assets available for sale due to changes in the interest rates based on positions existing at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 and a simplified scenario of a 218 and 100 bp symmetrical fall or rise in all yield curves, respectively, is as follows:

	20	2014		13
	Net profit	Net profit Equity		Equity
	AMD′000	AMD'000	AMD'000	AMD'000
218 / 100 bp parallel fall	-	104,597	_	65,112
218 / 100 bp parallel rise		(104,597)		(65,112)

## (b) Market risk (continued)

#### (ii) Currency risk

The Bank has assets and liabilities denominated in several foreign currencies. Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Bank does not hedge its exposure to currency risk.

The following table shows the foreign currency exposure structure of financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2014:

				Other	
	AMD	USD	EUR	currencies	Total
	AMD'000	AMD'000	AMD'000	AMD'000	AMD'000
Assets					
Cash and cash equivalents	501,776	2,917,582	817,810	7,005	4,244,173
Available-for-sale financial assets	3,181,783	_	_	_	3,181,783
Amounts due from banks	6,599,148	9,334,859	_	_	15,934,007
Loans to customers	6,613,604	21,605,460	215,569	_	28,434,633
Other financial assets	2,005	8,434	11	_	10,450
Total	16,898,316	33,866,335	1,033,390	7,005	51,805,046
Liabilities					·
Deposits and balances from banks	1,226,598	3,912,614	-	_	5,139,212
Amounts payable under repurchase					
agreements	3,057,139	_	-	_	3,057,139
Current accounts and deposits from					
customers	4,599,241	28,277,242	959,852	1,253	33,837,588
Other borrowed funds	934,991	2,413,542	_	_	3,348,533
Other financial liabilities	93,145	1,502	669	_	95,316
Total	9911,114	34,604,900	960,521	1,253	45,477,788
Net position	6,987,202	(738,565)	72,869	5,752	6,327,258
The influence of derivatives	(141,609)	142,491	_	_	882
Net position with derivatives	6,845,593	(596,074)	72,869	5,752	6,328,140

The following table shows the foreign currency exposure structure of financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2013:

				Other	
	AMD	USD	EUR	currencies	Total
	AMD'000	AMD'000	AMD'000	AMD'000	AMD'000
Assets					
Cash and cash equivalents	3,966,858	3,525,818	764,121	71,029	8,327,826
Available-for-sale financial assets	3,439,247	_	_	_	3,439,247
Amounts due from banks	140,000	4,970,012	_	_	5,110,012
Loans to customers	6,733,571	17,178,862	192,728	_	24,105,161
Other financial assets	83,856	2,081	358	_	86,295
Total	14,363,532	25,676,773	957,207	71,029	41,068,541
Liabilities					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Deposits and balances from banks	363,096	2,076,500	279	2	2,439,877
Amounts payable under repurchase					
agreements	750,641	_	_	_	750,641
Current accounts and deposits from					
customers	3,318,084	20,082,479	964,640	23,600	24,388,803
Other borrowed funds	1,013,620	4,827,544	_	_	5,841,164
Other financial liabilities	86,019	33,385	634	1,244	121,282
Total	5,531,460	27,019,908	965,553	24,846	33,541,767
Net position	8,832,072	(1,343,135)	(8,346)	46,183	7,526,774

#### (b) Market risk (continued)

A weakening of the AMD, as indicated below, against the following currencies at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on foreign currency exchange rate variances that the Bank considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

	2014	2013
	AMD′000	AMD'000
19.1% appreciation of USD against AMD	(113,850)	(256,539)
20.71% appreciation of EUR against AMD	15,091	(1,728)

A strengthening of the AMD against the above currencies at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

## (c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Bank if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Bank has policies and procedures for the management of credit exposures (both for recognized financial assets and unrecognized contractual commitments).

Corporate loan credit applications are originated and analyzed by the relevant relationship managers from the Commercial Banking Department, which is responsible for the corporate loan portfolio. Analysis reports are based on a structured analysis focusing on the customer's business and financial performance. The loan credit application and the report are then independently reviewed by the Risk Management Department and a second opinion is given accompanied by verification that credit policy requirements are met. The Management Committee reviews the loan credit application on the basis of submissions by the Commercial Banking Department. Individual transactions are also reviewed by the Legal Unit, depending on the specific risks and pending final approval of the Management Committee.

The Bank continuously monitors the performance of individual credit exposures and regularly reassesses the creditworthiness of its customers. The review is based on the customer's most recent financial statements and other information submitted by the borrower, or otherwise obtained by the Bank. The current market value of collateral is regularly assessed by either independent appraisal companies or the Bank's specialists.

Retail loan credit applications are reviewed by the Retail Approval Unit, Retail Approval Committee and Management Committee based on the authorized limits.

Apart from individual customer analysis, the whole credit portfolio is assessed by the Risk Management Department with regard to credit concentration and market risks.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is generally reflected in the carrying amounts of financial assets in the statement of financial position and unrecognized contractual commitment amounts. The impact of possible netting of assets and liabilities to reduce potential credit exposure is not significant.

The maximum exposure to credit risk from financial assets at the reporting date is as follows:

	2014	2013
	AMD′000	AMD'000
Assets		
Cash and cash equivalents	4,244,173	8,327,826
Available-for-sale financial assets	3,181,783	3,439,247
Amounts due from banks	15,934,007	5,110,012
Loans to customers	28,434,633	24,105,161
Other financial assets	10,450	86,295
Total maximum exposure	51,805,046	41,068,541

#### (c) Credit risk (continued)

Collateral generally is not held against investments in securities, and loans to banks, except when securities are held as part of reverse repurchase activities.

For the analysis of collateral held against loans to customers and concentration of credit risk in respect of loans to customers refer to note 15.

The maximum exposure to credit risk from unrecognized contractual commitments at the reporting date is presented in note 26.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial assets and financial liabilities that:

- are offset in the Bank's statement of financial position or
- are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement that covers similar financial instruments, irrespective of whether they are offset in the statement of financial position.

The similar agreements include derivative clearing agreements, global master repurchase agreements, and global master securities lending agreements. Similar financial instruments include derivatives, sales and repurchase agreements, reverse sale and repurchase agreements and securities borrowing and lending agreements. Financial instruments such as loans and deposits are not disclosed in the table below unless they are offset in the statement of financial position.

The Bank receives and accepts collateral in the form of marketable securities in respect of sale and repurchase, and reverse sale and repurchase agreements.

Such collateral is subject to the standard industry terms. This means that securities received/given as collateral can be pledged or sold during the term of the transaction but must be returned on maturity of the transaction. The terms also give each counterparty the right to terminate the related transitions upon the counterparty's failure to post collateral.

The above arrangements do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the statement of financial position. This is because they create a right of set-off of recognized amounts that is enforceable only following an event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Bank or the counterparties. In addition the Bank and its counterparties do not intend to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

The table below shows financial assets and financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar arrangements as at 31 December 2014:

#### AMD'000

				Related	
		Gross amount of	Net amount of	amounts not	
		recognized	financial	offset in the	
		financial liability	liabilities	statement of	
		offset in the	presented in the	financial	
	Gross amounts	statement of	statement of	position	
Types of financial	of recognized	financial	financial	Financial	
liabilities	financial liability	position	position	instruments	Net amount
Amounts payable under					
repurchase					
agreements	3,057,139		3,057,139	(3,057,139)	
Total financial liabilities	3,057,139		3,057,139	(3,057,139)	

## (c) Credit risk (continued)

The table below shows financial assets and financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar arrangements as at 31 December 2013:

#### AMD'000

		Gross amount of	Net amount of	Related amounts	
		recognized	financial	not offset in the	
		financial liability	liabilities	statement of	
	Gross amounts of	offset in the	presented in the	financial position	
Types of financial	recognized	statement of	statement of	Financial	
liabilities	financial liability	financial position	financial position	instruments	Net amount
Amounts payable					
under repurchase					
agreements	750,641	=	750,641	(750,641)	_
Total financial					
liabilities	750,641	_	750,641	(750,641)	-

#### (d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty meeting obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk exists when the maturities of assets and liabilities do not match. The matching and/or controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities is fundamental to liquidity management. It is unusual for financial institutions ever to be completely matched since business transacted is often of an uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of losses.

The Bank maintains liquidity management with the objective of ensuring that funds will be available at all times to honor all cash flow obligations as they become due. The liquidity policy is reviewed and approved by the ALCO Committee.

The Bank seeks to actively support a diversified and stable funding base comprising long-term and short-term loans from other banks, core corporate and retail customer deposits, accompanied by diversified portfolios of highly liquid assets, in order to be able to respond quickly and smoothly to unforeseen liquidity requirements.

The liquidity management policy requires:

- projecting cash flows by major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary in relation thereto;
- maintaining a diverse range of funding sources;
- managing the concentration and profile of debts;
- maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection against any interruption to cash flow;
- maintaining liquidity and funding contingency plans;
- monitoring liquidity ratios against regulatory requirements.

The Treasury Unit receives information from business units regarding the liquidity profile of their financial assets and liabilities and details of other projected cash flows arising from projected future business. The Treasury Unit then provides for an adequate portfolio of short-term liquid assets to be maintained, largely made up of short-term liquid trading securities, loans to banks and other inter-bank facilities, to ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained within the Bank as a whole.

The daily liquidity position is monitored and regular liquidity stress testing under a variety of scenarios covering both normal and more severe market conditions is performed by the Treasury Unit. Under the normal market conditions, liquidity reports covering the liquidity position of the Bank are presented to senior management on a weekly basis. Decisions on the liquidity management are made by the ALCO Committee, based on the reports of Risk Management and Treasury Unit.

The following tables show the undiscounted cash flows on financial liabilities and credit-related commitments on the basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity. The total gross outflow disclosed in the tables is the contractual, undiscounted cash flow on the financial liability or credit related commitment. For issued financial guarantee contracts, the maximum amount of the guarantee is allocated to the earliest period in which the guarantee can be called.

## (d) Liquidity risk (continued)

The contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities as at 31 December 2014 is as follows:

_AMD'000	Demand and less than 1 month	From 1 to 3 months	From 3 to 6 months	From 6 to 12 months	More than 1 year	Total gross amount outflow	Carrying amount
31 December 2014 Non-derivative liabilities Deposits and balances from							
banks Amounts payable under repurchase	881,738	827,030	15,319	3,306,575	389,141	5,419,803	5,139,212
agreements Current accounts and deposits from	3,077,219	-	-	-	-	3,077,219	3,057,139
customers Other borrowed	6,292,641	5,796,691	5,040,906	10,146,394	7,987,885	35,264,517	33,837,588
funds Other financial	2,418,184	15,554	14,497	37,028	1,230,047	3,715,310	3,348,533
liabilities	90,370	4,946				95,316	95,316
Total	12,760,152	6,644,221	5,070,722	13,489,997	9,607,073	47,572,165	45,477,788
Credit related commitments	797,782	_			_	797,782	797,782

The contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities as at 31 December 2013 is as follows:

	Demand and less than	From 1 to 3	From 3 to 6	From 6 to 12	More than	Total gross amount	Carrying
AMD′000	1 month	months	months	months	1 year	outflow	amount
31 December 2013 Non-derivative liabilities Deposits and							
balances from							
banks Amounts payable	10,368	738,820	850	721,194	1,191,453	2,662,685	2,439,877
under repurchase agreements	751,923	_	_	_	_	751,923	750,641
Current accounts and deposits from	,					,	
customers Other borrowed	6,404,792	5,642,013	3,094,604	6,641,789	3,594,480	25,377,678	24,388,803
funds	4,834,137	22,592	42,150	100,174	1,773,336	6,772,389	5,841,164
Other financial liabilities	121,282					121,282	121,282
Total	12,122,502	6,403,425	3,137,604	7,463,157	6,559,269	35,685,957	33,541,767
Credit related commitments	1,430,790	_	_	_	_	1,430,790	1,430,790

In accordance with Armenian legislation, individuals can withdraw their term deposits at any time, forfeiting in most of the cases the accrued interest. These deposits are classified in accordance with their contractual maturity dates. The classification of these deposits in accordance with their stated maturity dates is presented below:

	2014 AMD'000	2013 AMD′000
Demand and less than 1 month	1,618,707	1,899,373
From 1 to 3 months	3,871,213	3,661,249
From 3 to 12 months	13,696,577	8,220,658
More than 1 year	4,206,824	3,056,312
	23,393,321	16,837,592

## (d) Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below shows an analysis, by contractual maturities, of the amounts recognized in the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014:

AMD'000	Demand and less than 1 month	From 1 to 3 months	From 3 to 12 months	From 1 to 5 years	More than 5 years	No maturity	Overdue	Total
Assets								
Cash and cash equivalents	4,244,173	_	_	_	_	_	_	4,244,173
Available-for-sale financial	.,2,							.,2,
assets	-	21,723	47,825	3,099,075	-	13,160	-	3,181,783
Amounts due from banks	970,868	5,012,954	3,288,038	_	-	6,662,147	-	15,934,007
Loans to customers	402,196	832,386	8,741,492	8,737,108	6,677,377	-	3,044,074	28,434,633
Property, equipment and								
intangible assets	-	_	-	-		1,031,801	-	1,031,801
Other assets	12,550	10,436	49,161	335,163	53,450		_	460,760
Total assets	5,629,787	5,877,499	12,126,516	12,171,346	6,730,827	7,707,108	3,044,074	53,287,157
Liabilities Deposits and balances								
from banks Amounts payable under	875,556	811,409	3,150,228	302,019	-	-	-	5,139,212
repurchase agreements Current accounts and	3,057,139	-	-	-	-	-	-	3,057,139
deposits from								
customers	6,287,969	5,738,047	14,602,150	7,209,422	-	-	-	33,837,588
Other borrowed funds	2,418,178	15,387	48,603	511,001	355,364	-	-	3,348,533
Deferred tax liabilities	_	-	_	_	-	10,548	_	10,548
Other liabilities	130,173	4,980	3,912	816	6,943		_	146,824
Total liabilities	12,769,015	6,569,823	17,804,893	8,023,258	362,307	10,548		45,539,844
Net position	(7,139,228)	(692,324)	(5,678,377)	4,148,088	6,368,520	7,696,560	3,044,074	7,747,313

General economic environment in Armenia stipulates one year or less tenor for customer deposits while longer than one year tenor for loans to customers, resulting in negative liquidity gap in "Up to 1 year" range. The negative gap amounted to AMD 13,509,929 thousand as at 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013: AMD 10,654,869 thousand), being 36.4% of total liabilities, maturing in the same range (31 December 2013: 37.3%).

Negative gap is significantly mitigated by a steady level of core current accounts and high reinvestment rate of term deposits. Daily average balance of demand deposits amounted to AMD 4,160,187 thousand (31 December 2013: AMD 4,740,733 thousand). In 2014 on average 88.1% of matured term deposits were renewed by the customers (2013: 83.3%).

## (d) Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below shows an analysis, by contractual maturities, of the amounts recognized in the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013:

AMD'000	Demand and less than 1 month	From 1 to 3 months	From 3 to 12 months	From 1 to 5 years	More than 5 years	No maturity	Overdue	Total
Acceta				, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,				
Assets Cash and cash								
equivalents	8,327,826	_	_	_	_	_	_	8,327,826
Available-for-sale	0,327,020							0,327,020
financial assets	_	30,258	48,446	3,347,383	_	13,160	_	3,439,247
Amounts due from banks	623,958	1,216,801	3,074,696	-	_	194,557	_	5,110,012
Loans to customers	366,645	873,717	3,172,508	12,703,199	5,003,641		1,985,451	24,105,161
Property, equipment and								
intangible assets	-	-	-	-	-	1,072,720	-	1,072,720
Other assets	59,615		139,881	361,069			_	560,565
Total assets	9,378,044	2,120,776	6,435,531	16,411,651	5,003,641	1,280,437	1,985,451	42,615,531
Liabilities								
Deposits and balances								
from banks	10,369	725,478	678,271	1,025,759	_	_	_	2,439,877
Amounts payable under	10,007	720,170	0,0,2,1	1,020,707				2,107,077
repurchase								
agreements	750,641	_	_	_	_	_	_	750,641
Current accounts and								
deposits from								
customers	6,399,300	5,584,567	9,348,080	3,014,766	42,090	_	_	24,388,803
Other borrowed funds	4,834,125	20,335	60,764	454,849	471,091		-	5,841,164
Deferred tax liabilities	-	-	-	-	-	26,525	_	26,525
Other liabilities	167,545	1,895	7,850	4,935	7,121			189,346
Total liabilities	12,161,980	6,332,275	10,094,965	4,500,309	520,302	26,525		33,636,356
Net position	(2,783,936)	(4,211,499)	(3,659,434)	11,911,342	4,483,339	1,253,912	1,985,451	8,979,175

The key measure used by the Bank for managing liquidity risk is the ratio of highly liquid assets to demand liabilities. For this purpose highly liquid assets include cash, nostro accounts, gold bullion, debt securities issued by the Government of Armenia, CBA and other corporate debt securities for which there is an active and liquid market, which are not pledged or the use of which is not restricted in any way. Demand liabilities include current accounts and demand deposits of customers, as well as any other liability that is payable on demand. The reported ratios of highly liquid assets to demand liabilities at the reporting date and for the reporting year are as follows:

	2014 (Unaudited)	2013 (Unaudited)
For December	252.5%	251.5%
Average for the period	298.3%	223.0%
Maximum for the period	367.1%	276.0%
Minimum for the period	224.7%	179.1%

The above ratio is also used to measure compliance with the liquidity limit established by the CBA (60% minimum).

## 25. Capital management

The CBA sets and monitors capital requirements for the Bank.

The Bank defines as capital those items defined by statutory regulation as capital for credit institutions. Under the current capital requirements set by the CBA, which are based on Basle Accord principles, banks have to maintain a ratio of capital to risk weighted assets (statutory capital ratio) above the prescribed minimum level. As at 31 December 2014, this minimum level is 12%. The Bank is in compliance with the statutory capital ratio as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

## 25. Capital management (continued)

The following table shows the composition of the capital position calculated in accordance with the requirements of the CBA, as at 31 December 2014 and 2013:

	(Unaudited) 2014 AMD′000	(Unaudited) 2013 AMD′000
Share capital Share premium General reserve (Accumulated losses)/Retained earnings Deductions Total tier 1 capital	8,125,100 257,149 51,292 (1,052,581) (309,315) 7,071,645	8,125,100 257,149 51,292 430,482 (401,747) 8,462,276
Tier 2 capital Revaluation reserve for available-for-sale financial assets Total tier 2 capital	115,892 115,892	241,267 241,267
Total capital	7,187,537	8,703,543
Total risk weighted assets	39,708,051	37,968,598
Total capital expressed as a percentage of risk-weighted assets	18.1%	22.9%
Total tier 1 capital expressed as a percentage of risk-weighted assets	17.8%	22.3%

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of risk weights classified according to the nature and reflecting an estimate of credit, market and other risks associated with each asset and counterparty, taking into account any eligible collateral or guarantees. A similar treatment is adopted for unrecognized contractual commitments, with some adjustments to reflect the more contingent nature of the potential losses.

#### 26. Credit related commitments

The Bank has outstanding credit related commitments to extend loans. These credit related commitments take the form of approved loans and credit card limits and overdraft facilities.

The Bank provides financial guarantees and letters of credit to guarantee the performance of customers to third parties. These agreements have fixed limits and generally extend for a period of up to one year.

The Bank applies the same credit risk management policies and procedures when granting credit commitments, financial guarantees and letters of credit as it does for granting loans to customers.

The contractual amounts of credit related commitments are set out in the following table by category. The amounts reflected in the table for credit related commitments assume that amounts are fully advanced. The amounts reflected in the table for guarantees and letters of credit represent the maximum accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counterparties failed completely to perform as contracted.

	2014 AMD′000	2013 AMD′000
Contracted amount		
Loan and credit line commitments	607,921	1,142,960
Credit card commitments	138,648	183,158
Guarantees and letters of credit	51,213	104,672
	797,782	1,430,790

The total outstanding contractual credit related commitments above do not necessarily represent future cash requirements, as these commitments may expire or terminate without being funded.

As at 31 December 2014 of these credit related commitments, AMD 465,580 thousand (31 December 2013: AMD 866,690 thousand) are to four customers (31 December 2013: five customers). This exposure represents a significant credit risk exposure to the Bank.

# 27. Contingencies

## (a) Insurance

The insurance industry in the Republic of Armenia is in a developing state and many forms of insurance protection common in other parts of the world are not yet generally available. The Bank has up to AMD 500,000 thousand coverage for each type of insurance including for its premises and equipment, business interruption, third party liability in respect of property arising from accidents on the Bank's property or related to the Bank's operations. The Bank also has up to AMD 90,000 thousand insurance coverage of cash desks against physical damage and theft.

## (b) Litigation

Management is unaware of any significant actual, pending or threatened claims against the Bank.

## (c) Taxation contingencies

The taxation system in the Republic of Armenia is relatively new and is characterized by frequent changes in legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions, which are often unclear, contradictory and subject to varying interpretation by different tax authorities. Taxes are subject to review and investigation by a number of authorities, which have the authority to impose severe fines, penalties and interest charges. In the event of a breach of tax legislation, no liabilities for additional taxes, fines or penalties may be imposed by tax authorities once three years have elapsed from the date of the breach.

These circumstances may create tax risks in the Republic of Armenia that are substantially more significant than in other countries. Management believes that it has provided adequately for tax liabilities based on its interpretations of applicable Armenian tax legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions. However, the interpretations of the relevant authorities could differ and the effect on these financial statements, if the authorities were successful in enforcing their interpretations, could be significant.

## 28. Related party transactions

#### (a) Control relationships

The Bank's parent Company is "Byblos Bank S.A.L", which owns 65% of the share capital. The parent Company produces publicly available financial statements. The party with ultimate control over the Bank is Francois Bassil.

#### (b) Transactions with the members of the Board of Directors and the Management Committee

Total remuneration included in personnel expenses for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

	2014	2013
	AMD′000	AMD'000
Short-term employee benefits	325,002	272,282

2011

These amounts include cash and non-cash benefits in respect of the members of the Board of Directors and the Management Committee.

The outstanding balances and average effective interest rates as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 for transactions with the members of the Board of Directors and the Management Committee are as follows:

	2014	Average	2013	Average interest
	AMD'000	interest rate, %	AMD'000	rate, %
Statement of financial position				
Loans issued (gross)	178,900	9.8%	242,701	9.5%
Loan impairment allowance	(291)		(2,352)	
Deposits received	274,247	6.1%	331,483	5.4%

Loans to related parties are in Armenian Dram and repayable from 1 to 15 years based on the type of the loan. Loans are secured by the appropriate type of collateral, as presented in note 15 (c) (ii).

2012

## 28. Related party transactions (continued)

# (b) Transactions with the members of the Board of Directors and the Management Committee (continued)

Amounts included in profit or loss in relation to transactions with the members of the Board of Directors and the Management Committee for the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

	2014	2013
_	AMD'000	AMD'000
Profit or loss		
Interest income	22,667	23,013
Interest expense	(20,184)	(26,081)
Impairment reversal / (losses)	2,061	(82)

# (c) Transactions with other related parties

Other related parties include the Parent company, its fellow subsidiaries and non-controlling shareholders. The outstanding balances and the related average effective interest rates as at 31 December 2014 and related profit or loss amounts of transactions for the year ended 31 December 2014 with other related parties are as follows:

	Entity with significant		Other subsidiaries of the				
	Parent company		influance over the Bank		parent company		Total
		Average		Average		Average	
		effective		effective		effective	
		interest rate,		interest rate,		interest rate,	
	AMD'000	%	AMD'000	%	AMD'000	%	AMD'000
Statement of financial							
position							
Assets							
Cash and cash equivalents							
- in USD	73,327	_	_	_	61,791	_	135,118
- in EUR	21,244	_	_	_	12,466	_	33,710
- in other currencies	1,091	_	_	_	_	_	1,091
Liabilities							
Deposits and balances from							
banks							
- in USD	3,912,610	8.9%	_	_	_	_	3,912,610
Current accounts and							
deposits from customers							
- in USD	_	_	_	_	3,130,435	6.3%	3,130,435
Other borrowed funds							
- in USD	_	_	342,965	5.7%	6 –		342,965
Profit or loss							
Interest income	55	_	_		_		55
Interest expense	(215,976)	_	(35,856)	_	(152,615)	_	(404,447)
Fee expense	(4,345)	_		_		_	(4,345)
Net other operating expense		_	(146)	_	_	_	(146)

# 28. Related party transactions (continued)

The outstanding balances and the related average effective interest rates as at 31 December 2013 and related profit or loss amounts of transactions for the year ended 31 December 2013 with other related parties are as follows:

	Parent company		Entity with significant influance over the Bank		Other subsidiaries of the parent company		Total
		Average effective interest rate,		Average effective interest rate,	,	Average effective interest rate,	
	AMD'000	%	AMD'000	%	AMD'000	%	AMD'000
Statement of financial position Assets Cash and cash equivalents							
- in USD	54,099	0.1%	_	_	19,488	0.1%	73,587
- in EUR	73,373	_	_	_	6,492	-	79,865
- in other currencies	5,529	_	_	_	_	_	5,529
Loans to banks							
- in AMD	40	_	-	_	-	_	40
Liabilities Deposits and balances from							
banks - in USD	2.074.444	8.9%				_	2.074.444
Current accounts and	2,076,446	8.9%	_	_	_	_	2,076,446
deposits from customers - in USD	_	_	_	_	1,825,082	6.0%	1,825,082
Other borrowed funds					1,023,002	0.0%	1,023,002
- in USD	_	_	878,718	5.7%	_	_	878,718
Profit or loss							,
Interest income	16		_		_		16
Interest expense	(241,008)	_	(69,131)		(105,016)	-	(415,155)
Fee expense	(4,475)	-	_		-	_	(4,475)
Net other operating expense	_	_	(62)		_	_	(62)
Professional services	(2,565)	_	-		_	_	(2,565)

Cash and cash equivalents held with related parties are not secured.

## 29. Financial assets and liabilities: fair values and accounting classifications

#### (a) Accounting classifications and fair values

The estimates of fair value are intended to approximate the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. However given the uncertainties and the use of subjective judgment, the fair value should not be interpreted as being realizable in an immediate sale of the assets or transfer of liabilities.

The estimated fair value of all financial instruments, except for unquoted equity securities and financial instruments, disclosed in the table below, approximate their carrying values. As disclosed in note 13 the fair value of unquoted equity securities available-for-sale with a carrying value of AMD 13,160 thousand cannot be determined.

	2014			2013		
AMD'000	Fair value	Carrying amount	Unrecognize d gain/(loss)	Fair value	Carrying amount	Unrecognize d gain/(loss)
Loans to customers Current accounts and deposits from	28,162,411	28,434,633	(272,222)	22,385,953	24,105,161	(1,719,208)
customers	30,824,179	33,837,588	3,013,409	22,629,733	24,388,803	1,759,070

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist and other valuation models.

## 29. Financial assets and liabilities: fair values and accounting classifications (continued)

## (a) Accounting classifications and fair values (continued)

The following assumptions are used by management to estimate the fair values of financial instruments:

- discount rates of 8% and 14%-15% are used for discounting future cash flows from loans to banks and loans to customers, respectively
- discount rates of 8%-10% are used for discounting future cash flows from liabilities.

#### (b) Fair value hierarchy

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

- Level 1: guoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.
- Level 2: inputs other than quotes prices included within Level 1 that are observable, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.
- Level 3: inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments where the valuation technique
  includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the
  instrument's valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar
  instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences
  between the instruments.

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at 31 December 2014, by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised. The amounts are based on the values recognized in the statement of financial position:

AMD'000	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
Available-for-sale financial assets				
- Debt instruments		3,168,623		3,168,623
		3,168,623		3,168,623

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value at 31 December 2013 by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised. The amounts are based on the values recognized in the statement of financial position:

AMD'000	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
Available-for-sale financial assets				
- Debt instruments	<u> </u>	3,426,087		3,426,087
		3,426,087		3,426,087

Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value at 31 December 2014, but for which fair value is disclosed are attributed to Level 3 fair value hierarchy.

## 30. Subsequent events

After the reporting date the Bank has repossessed two collaterals of an individualy impaired loan in amount of AMD 629,856 thousand.